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Y RAKINSURANCE B
Simply Better
Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2021

The Board of Directors has pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Incorporation and registered office —

Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance COIﬁ'f)any P.S.C. (RAK Insurance) was incorporated under an
Emiri Decree Number 20/76 issued by HH Ruler of Ras Al Khaimah. The address of the registered
office is PO Box 506, Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab Emirates.

Financial position and results

Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Co. (RAK Insurance) achieved a net profit of AED 10.5M
compared to AED 13.5M in the previous year.

Gross written premium decreased by 5% to AED 469M compared to AED 492M in the previous
year.

Gross underwriting income {rom insurance operations decreased to AED 50M compared to AED
69M in the previous year.

The Company's total assets increased from AED 677M to AED 797M and the Shareholders' Equity
remained same at AED 203M. The increase is mainly due to increase in reinsurance contract assets
and investments.

Total liabilities increased from AED 474M to AED 594M as compared to the previous year. This
increase was primarily due to the increase in Insurance contract liabilities, Insurance and other
payables and Bank borrowing.

Basic earnings per share is AED 0.09 in the current year compared to AED 0.11 in the previous
year on a Capital base of AED 121.3M (2020: AED 121.3M).

On behalf of the Board of Directors of RAK Insurance, I would like to thank all who have
contributed to our Company's success. Our sincere appreciation to the executive management and
staff for their dedication, commitment, and constant hard work. The Directors would also like to
acknowledge our reinsurance partners, customers and all the stakeholders of the Company.

Yours faithfully,
Salem Al Sharhan

Chairman
10 February 2022 1
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the known and possible effects of the matter described in the “Basis for
qualified opinion” section of our report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (the “Company”) as at
31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Company'’s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for qualified opinion

Prior to October 2020, the Company had entered into medical capitation agreements with several
medical service providers to cap the cost of claims arising from some of its medical insurance
contracts. These agreements meet the definition of reinsurance contracts under International
Financial Reporting Standard 4, “Insurance contracts”.

Effective 27 October 2020, management terminated the existing medical capitation agreements per the
recommendation of the UAE Insurance Authority and is gradually converting the medical policies which
were previously underwritten under the capitation schemes, into regular reinsurance coverage in line
with all other medical policies.

As a result, the residual impact of such medical policies is an overstatement in “Gross claims settled”
and an understatement in “Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers” in the statements of profit or loss
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 of 24 million and AED 79 million
respectively and an understatement in “Reinsurance contract assets” and “Insurance and other
payables” in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 of Nil
and AED 24 million respectively.

In addition, because of the lack of available information from third party administrators, management
was not able to quantify the cost of the notional claims that the Company would have incurred if the
capitation agreements were properly accounted for as reinsurance contracts. As such, both the “Gross
claims settled” and “Reinsurance share of claims settled” amounts in the statements of profit or loss for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 would be understated by the same amount.

There is no impact of any of these misstatements on the “Gross underwriting income” or the “Profit’
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Ras Al Khaimah Branch), License no. 41548
Julphar Towers, Level 24, Office No. 2402, Ras Al Khaimah -United Araby Emirates
T:+971(0) 7 226 0222, F: +971 (0) 7 226 0555, www.pwc.com/me

Mohamed EIBorno, Jacques Fakhoury, Douglas O'Mahony, Murad Alnsour and Rami Sarhan are registered as practising
auditors with the UAE Ministry of Economy
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Basis for qualified opinion (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates. We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Our audit approach

Qverview

Key Audit Matters ° Valuation of insurance contract liabilities
. Impairment losses on Insurance and other receivables

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective
judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether
there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities
As disclosed in note 10 to these financial
statements, the Company’s insurance contract
liabilities amounted to AED 416 million as at
31 December 2021 (2020: AED 349 million).

Note 10 to these financial statements
describes the elements that make up the
insurance contract liabilities balance. We
comment on the most judgemental elements
below:

Outstanding claims
Qutstanding claims balance is a material within

the financial statements, is highly judgmental
-and can be complex to calculate in certain
instances. The outstanding claims are a best
estimate of all claims incurred but not settled at
the reporting date.

Claims incurred but not reported:

This reserve represents the liability for claims
incurred but not reparted at the end of the
reporting period, which is determined through
an external independent actuarial valuation,
considering the Company's historical loss
experience. Significant assumptions are
applied in the valuation of claims that have
been incurred at the reporting date but have
not yet been reported to the Company. In
addition, lines of business where there is a
greater length of time between the initial claim
event and the settlement tend to display
greater variahility between initial estimates and
final settlement amounts.

Mathematical reserves:

This reserve represents the liability for the life
insurance policies which is determined through
an external independent actuarial valuation,
considering future policy benefits at the end of
each reporting period. It involves complex and
subjective judgements and uncertainty about
future events for which changes in the
assumptions can result in a significant impact
to the estimate.

The valuation of the other elements of the
Company’s insurance contract liabilities was
also carried out by an external independent
actuarial valuation. We consider the valuation
of insurance contract liabilities a key audit
matter because of the complexity involved in
the estimation process and the significant
judgements that management make in
determining the reasonableness and adequacy
of the insurance contract liabilities.

As part of our audit procedures, we:

checked on a sample basis the outstanding claims
reserves against supporting documentation, such
as loss adjusters’ reports;

compared on a sample basis the outstanding
claims reserves with the subsequent payments, if
settled or subsequent reserve amounts, if
unsettled;

re-performed reconciliations between the data
used in the actuarial reserving calculations and
the underlying accounting records of the
Company;

evaluated the competence, objectivity and
independence of the Company's appointed
external actuaries as well as our audit experts;
using our audit experts, we applied our industry
knowledge and experience and we compared the
methodology, models and assumptions used
against recognised actuarial practices. In
particular we assessed:

o whether data used by the Company’s
actuarial expert is reasonable and
sufficient to determine actuarial reserves
of the Company as at report date

o whether the checks applied by the
Company’s actuarial expert are sufficient
to determine the accuracy of the data
used for actuarial work;

o whether the assumptions and methods
used in actuarial report are reasonable to
reflect the underlying insurance liabilities
of the Company;

o whether the Company’s actuary has
reviewed the claims incurred but not
reported claims at prior year end in the
light of subsequent
development/settlement of these claims
and assed the effect of aforesaid on the
current year estimate; and

o recalculated IBNR on a sample basis for
maijor lines of business.

checked the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in relation to the valuation of insurance
contract liabilities included in these financial
statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Impairment losses on insurance and other As part of our audit procedures, we:

receivables

As disclosed in note 11 to these financial statements, . tested the completeness and accuracy of
the Company'’s insurance and other receivables as at the input data used in the impairment

31 December 2021 amounted to AED 208 million model calculations:

(2020: AED 222 million) and the related provision for
impairment amounted to AED 33 million (2020: AED

assessed and reviewed the methodology
applied by the Company in calculating the

a5 mlion). impairment provision to assess its

o consistency with the requirements of IFRS
The Company makes complex and subjective 9 and tested the appropriateness and
judgements over both the timing of recognition of reasonableness of key assumptions and
impairment of insurance and other receivables and the judgments used;

estimation of the amount of such impairment using the
expected credit loss model. The expected credit losses
on insurance receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and an analysis of the
debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic

for balances determined to be individually
impaired, we tested a sample to assess
the reasonableness of management's
estimated provisions; and

conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate . checked the appropriateness of the

and an assessment of both the current as well as the disciosures made in relation to the

forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. impairment of insurance and other
receivables included in these financial
statements.

We consider the calculation of impairment losses on
insurance and other receivables as a key audit matter
because of the significance of the insurance and other
receivables balance (representing 22% of the total
assets as at 31 December 2021), the related
estimation uncertainty to the financial statements and
the significance of the judgements used in applying the
requirements of IFRS 9.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, as amended, the UAE Federal Law
No. (B) of 2007, as amended, and the related Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies issued
by the United Arab Emirates Insurance Authority, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditﬂc')?fém:"éébwc)kr‘;éiBi‘lmes for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 as amended:
i. we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii. the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, as amended,;

iil. the Company has maintained proper books of account;

iv. the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of
account of the Company;

V. as disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements the Company has purchased or invested in
shares during the year ended 31 December 2021;

Vi, note 26 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions, and the
terms under which they were conducted;
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements (continued)

vii. based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our

attention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the year
ended 31 December 2021 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law Na. (2) of
2015, as amended, or of its Articles of Association which would materially affect its activities

orits financial position as at 31 December 2021; and

viii. note 24 to the financial statements discloses the social contributions made during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Further as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2007, as amended, and the related Financial

Regulations for Insurance Companies issued by the UAE Insurance Authority, we report that we have
obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

10 February 2022

PR

Rami Sarhan
Registered Auditor Number 1152
Place: Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab Emirates



Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Statement of financial position

As at As at
Notes 31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AED AED
ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 1,944,478 2,504,635
Investment properties 6 - 15,296,086
Intangible assets 7 6,619,820 7,858,509
Statutory deposit 9 10,000,000 10,000,000
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI™) 8 112,535,476 72,906,429
Bank balances and fixed deposits 13 192,385,619 181,133,154
Reinsurance contract assets 10 217,291,902 166,116,363
Deferred acquisition cost 20 23,228,424 24,088,139
Insurance and other receivables 11 175,405,403 167,318,389
Cash and cash equivalents 12 57,392,932 29,682,191
Total assets 796,804,054 676,903,895
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 14 121,275,000 121,275,000
Statutory reserve 15.1 49,756,048 48,708,862
Voluntary reserve 15.2 20,000,000 20,000,000
Reinsurance reserve 15.3 1,872,070 949,485
Cumulative changes in fair value of FVTOCI
investments (909,154) 650,387
Retained earnings 10,668,762 11,492,284
Total equity 202,662,726 203,076,018
LIABILITIES
Provision for employees' end of service indemnity 16 6,115,257 6,064,285
Insurance contract liabilities 10 415,562,473 348,693,073
Deferred commission income 19 15,563,294 19,240,758
Bank borrowings 18 33,056,997 -
Insurance and other payables 17 123,843,307 99,829,761
Total liabilities 594,141,328 473,827,877
Total equity and liabilities 796,804,054 676,903,895

These financial statements were authorised for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on
10 February-2022 and signed on their behalf by: /
e //,’)///

Ewen McRobbie
Chief Executive Officer

Chairman

The notes on pages 14 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements. 9



Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Statement of profit or loss

Insurance premium revenue earned
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers

Net insurance premium revenue earned

Gross claims settled
Reinsurance share of claims settled
Net claims settled

Net change in outstanding claims, unallocated
loss adjustment expenses and claims incurred but

not reported (“IBNR™) provisions
Net change in mathematical reserve
Net claims incurred

- Gross commission earned

Commission incurred

Net commission incurred

Gross underwriting income
General and administrative expenses
Allowance for impairment

Net underwriting (loss) / income

Interest income

Investment income - net

Gain on sale of property and equipment
Other income

Other expenses

Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Notes

21
21
21

19
20

27

8,11, 13

22
23
5
28
28

25

For the year ended 31 December

2021 2020

AED AED
459,352,353 577,444,159
(184,165,757) (216,439,271)
275,186,596 361,004,888
(277,268,762) {(420,795.877)
116,727,718 177,108,124

(160,541,044)

(243,687,753)

(5,831,043) 16,116,495
(418,069) (3,651,259)
(166,790,156)  (231,222.517)
18,360,602 20,804,194
(76,336,545) (81,787,727
(57,975,943) (60,983,533)
50,420,497 68,798,838
(55,277,964) (52,072,455)
(1,572,917) (16,181,765)
(6,430,384) 544,618
8,473,195 8,490,696
6,866,137 3,064,799
1,499 3,818,989
1,561,408 44,346

- (2,487,987)

10,471,855 13,475,461
0.09 0.11

10

The notes on pages 14 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December

Notes 2021 2020
AED AED
Profit for the year 10,471,855 13,475,461
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Net change in fair value of debt investments
designated at FVTOCI 8 (691,120) 2,501,683
Reclassification of gain on disposal of debt
investments designated at FVTOCI to the
statement of profit or loss 23 (1,102,114) (2,854,233)
Items thar will not be reclassified subsequently to
prafit or loss:
Realised gain on disposal of equity investments
designated at FVTOCI 376,394 -
Net change in fair value of investments
designated at FVTOCI - 8 233,693 (213,544)
Total ether comprehensive loss for the year (1,183,147) (566,094)
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,288,708 12,509,367

The notes on pages 14 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements. 11
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property and equipment

Depreciation of investment properties

Amortisation of intangible assets

Provision for impairment — net

Provision of employees' end of service indemnity
Reatised loss on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL
Realised gain on disposal of financial asset at FVTOCI
Realised gain on investment property

Realised gain on sale of property and equipment
Written off of property and equipment

Net income from investment properties

Amortisation of premium on FVYTOCI debt invesiments
Interest income

Dividend income

Interest cost on bank borrowing

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and

liabilities and payment of employees’ end of service
indemnity
(Increase) / decrease in reinsurance contract assets
Decrease in deferred acquisition costs
Increase / (decrease) in insurance contract liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in insurance and other receivables
Increase in current accounts in Lebanese hanks
Decrease in deferred commission income
Increase / (decrease) in insurance and other payables
Net cash generated from / (used in) operations
Director's remuneration
Employees’ end of service indemnity paid
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVTPL
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVTOCI
Purchase of FVTOCI investments

Proceeds from maturity of FVTOCI investments
Proceeds from sale of Investment property

Interest received

Dividend income received

Rental income received from investment properties
Maturities of fixed deposits with banks with original
maturities greater than three months

Placements of fixed deposits with banks with original
maturities greater than three months

Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid

Increase in bank borrowing

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Principal non-cash transactions:

Notes

8,11,12

)
DTRlwoew

10
20
10
13

17

-1 th

o0 00 OO OO

13

33
18

12
12

For the year ended 31 December

2021 2020

AED AED
10,471,855 13,475,461
1,114,034 1,449,830
42,651 518,919
1,483,278 1,481,240
1,572,917 16,181,765
1,136,399 941,523

- 412,498
(1,102,514 (2,854,233)
(4,805,380) -
(1,499 (3.818,989)

62 -
(183,929) (588,773)
212,413 349,764
(8,473,195) (8,840,460)
(774,714) (34,291}
23,648 -
776,426 18,674,254
(51,175,539) 50,040,252
859,715 9,208,163
66,869,400 (121,604,247)
{7,345,635) 75,074,781
(3,988,161) -
(3,677,464) (5,371,195)
24,989,898 (32,806,724)
27,308,640 (6.784.716)
(1,000,000 (350,000
{1,085.427) (557.928)
25,223,213 (7.692,644)
(559,862) (1,389,497)
(244,589) .
1,422 .

. 4187440
53,419,867 48,461,464
(100,764,148) (46,937,537)
7,346,000 .
20,058,815 .
7,543,966 10,401,069
774,714 52,623
183,929 588,773
223,317,494 132,156,667
(231,951,077) (137.797,888)
(20,867,469 9723114
(9,702,000) -
33,056,997 .
23,354,997 )
27,710,741 2,030,470
29,682,191 27,651,721
57,392,932 29,682.191

There were no non-cash transactions during the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: issuance of bonus shares of AET}

5.8 million for no consideration).

The notes on pages 14 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

1 General information

Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C. (the “Company™) is a public joint-stock
company, established and incorporated in the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah by Emiri decree No.
20/76 dated 26 October 1976. The Company is subject to the regulations of the U.A.E. Federal
Law No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations
and is registered in the Insurance Companies Register of the Central Bank of the UAE {formerly,
the UAE Insurance Authority), under registration number 7.

The Company is required, for the year ended 31 December 2021, to be in compliance with the
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 2 0f 2015, as amended. On 20 September 2021, the UAE
Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 {("Companies Law")} was issued and came into effect on 2
January 2022 which repealed the UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015. The Company has 12 months
from 2 January 2022 to comply with the provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No 32 of
2021.

Federal Decree Law No. (24) of 2020 which amends certain provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Law
No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations was
issued on 27 September 2020 and the amendments came into effect on 2 January 2021. Effective
2 January 2021, the Insurance Sector became under the supervision and authority of the Central
Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE™).

The Company is a subsidiary of National Bank of Ras Al Khaimah P.S.C. (the “Parent company™)
which is incorporated in the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab Emirates. The address of
the Company’s registered head office is P. O. Box 506, Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab Emirates.
The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange, United Arab
Emirates.

_ The principal activity of the Company is to undertake all classes of insurance business including

life assurance, saving and accumulation of funds. The Company operates through its head office
in Ras Al Khaimah and branch offices in Ras Al Khaimah, Dubai, Sharjah and Abu Dhabi.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”)

21 New and revised IFRSs applied on the financial statements

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021, have been adopted in these financial statements. The application of these
revised IFRSs, except where stated, has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for
the current and prior years.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 — Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS

7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021) - In Avgust 2020, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4

and IFRS 16 to address the issues that arise during the reform of an interest rate benchmark

rate, including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one.

The Phase 2 amendments provide the following reliefs:

«  When changing the basis for determining contractual cash flows for financial assets
and liabilities (including lease liabiiities), the reliefs have the effect that the changes,
that are necessary as a direct consequence of IBOR reform and which are considered
economically equivalent, will not result in an immediate gain or loss in the income
statement.

« The hedge accounting reliefs will allow most IAS 39 or IFRS 9 hedge relationships
that are directly affected by IBOR reform to continue. However, additional
ineffectiveness might need to be recorded.

Affected entities need to disclose information about the nature and extent of risks arising
from IBOR reform to which the entity is exposed, how the entity manages those risks, and
the entity’s progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates and how
it is managing that transition.

Given the pervasive nature of IBOR-based contracts, the reliefs could affect companies in
all industries.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) (continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Effective for annual

periods beginning

New and revised IFRSs on or after
IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts” 1 January 2023

On 18 May 2017, the IASB finished its long-standing project to develop an
accounting standard on insurance contracts and published IFRS 17 “Insurance
Contracts™. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which currently permits a wide variety of
practices, IFRS 17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all entities that
issue insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features.

IFRS 17 requires a current measurement model, where estimates are
remeasured in each reporting period. The measurement is based on the building
blocks of discounted, probability-weighted cash flows, a risk adjustment and a
contractual service margin (“CSM”) representing the unearned profit of the
contract. A simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the liability
for the remaining coverage if it provides a measurement that is not materially
different from the general model or if the coverage period is one year or less.
However, claims incurred will need to be measured based on the building blocks
of discounted, risk-adjusted, probability weighted cash flows.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) (continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

(continued)
Effective for annual
periods beginning
New and revised IFRSs on or after
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ 1 January 2023

The IASB issued the amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’, on 25 June
2020, together with an amendment to IFRS 4, so that eligible insurers can still
apply IFRS 9 alongside IFRS 17. This concluded the IASB’s targeted
amendments to IFRS 17 which aimed to ease implementation of the standard
by reducing implementation costs and making it easier for entities to explain,
to investors and others, the results from applying IFRS 17.

On 28 October 2021, the IASB (‘Board’) redeliberated the Exposure Draft
proposing a narrow-scope amendment relating to the presentation of
comparative information on initial application of both IFRS 9, ‘Financial -
Instruments’, and IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’, considering the feedback
from the comment letters received.

The amendment would permit an entity to apply an optional classification
overlay in the comparative period(s) presented on initial application of [FRS 17
and IFRS 9. The overlay would allow such assets to be classified, on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, in the comparative period(s) in a way that
aligns with how the entity expects those assets to be classified on initial
application of IFRS 9. Following feedback on the proposals, the Board extended
the scope of the overlay to include all financial assets, including those held in
respect of activities not connecied to contracts within the scope of IFRS 17. The
overlay could also be applied by entities that already apply IFRS 9. The Board
issued the amendment to IFRS 17 on 9 December 2021,

IFRS 17 should be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and the amendments should
be applied at the same time,
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31
(continued)

December 2021

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS”) (continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective and
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs

not early adopted

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments fo IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’® (continued)

Management anticipates that IFRS 17 will be adopted in the Company’s
financial statements on its application date. The application of IFRS 17 will
have an impact on amounts reported and disclosures made in the Company’s
financial statements in respect of its insurance contracts issued and reinsurance
contracts held. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effects of the application of this standard until the Company performs a
detailed review, The Company has appointed an external advisor to support the
business through the design and implementation phases of IFRS 17. The
Company, with the help of the external advisor has performed an operational
impact analysis and a financial impact assessment and concluded that all
insurance and reinsurance contracts can be accounted for under the Premium
Allecation Approach (“PAA”) due to the short term nature of the business the
Company writes.

As a result of this, management does not expect the results of adoption of IFRS
17 to be materially different to those of IFRS 4. Management is currently
working with their external advisor to initiate parallel runs between IFRS 17
and IFRS 4 to further assess any gaps that may arise in the implementation of
IFRS 17 prior to the effective date,

Narrow scope amendments fo IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 37 and some annual
improvements on IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IAS 41 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’ update a reference in IFRS 3
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the
accounting requirements for business combinations.

Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ prohibit a company
from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset
for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss,

Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets’ specify which costs a company includes when assessing whether a
contract will be loss-making.

Annual improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 1, ‘First-time
Adoption of IFRS’, IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’ and
the Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, ‘Leases’.

1 January 2023

I January 2022
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) (continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

(continued)
Effective for annual
periods beginning
New and revised IFRSs on or after
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements on classification Deferred until
of liabilities accounting periods
These narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial starting not earlier

statements’, clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, than 1 January 2024
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period.

Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the

reporting date (for example, the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). The

amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of

a liability.

Amendment to JFRS 16, ‘Leases’ — COVID-19 related rent concessions 1 April 2021
Extension of the practical expedient

As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been
granted to lessees. In May 2020, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 16
that provided an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether
4 rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. On 31 March
2021, the IASB published an additional amendment to extend the date of the
practical expedient from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022, Lessees can elect to
account for such rent concessions in the,same way as they would if they were not
lease modifications, In many cases, this will result in accounting for the
concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or
condition that triggers the reduced payment occurs.

Narrow scope amendments to JAS 1, Practice Statement 2 and IAS § 1 January 2023
These amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and to help

users of the financial statements distinguish between change in accounting

estimates and changes in accounting policies.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of these standards, interpretations and
amendments on the future financial statements and intends to adopt these, where applicable,
when they become effective. There are no other relevant applicable new standards and
amendments to published standards or [FRIC interpretations that have been issued but are not
effective for the first time for the Company’s financial year beginning on 1 January 2021 that
would be expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below., These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRS IC™) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the applicable
requirements of United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, as amended,
United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment of Insurance
Authority and Organization of its Operations, as amended, and the Financial Regulations for
Insurance Companies issued by the United Arab Emirates Insurance Authority. The financial
statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB™).

3.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a current / non-current
classification. However, the following balances would generally be classified as current: cash
and cash equivalents, insurance and other receivables insurance and other payables and bank
borrowing. The following balances would generally be classified as non-~current: property and
equipment, intangible assets, investment properties and statutory deposit. The following
balances are of mixed nature (including both current and non-current portions): reinsurance
contract assets, deferred acquisition costs, bank balances and fixed deposits, financial assets at
FVTOCI, insurance contract liabilities, deferred commission income and provision for
employees’ end of service benefits.

The financial statements are presented in Arab Emirate Dirham (“AED™).

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Insurance contracts

3.3.1 Definition, recognition and measurement

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance
contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contracts may also
transfer financial risk. As a peneral guideline, the Company defines as significant insurance
risk the probability of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at
least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Investment

contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk.

Insurance contracts issued by the Company are classified into two main categories, depending on
the duration of risk being: short-term insurance contracts and long-term insurance contracts.

3.3.2 Short-term insurance contracts

" These contracts are medical, motor, property, casualty, marine, engineering and short-duration life

insurance contracts.

Medical insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of incurring
medical expenses. Medical selection is part of the Company’s underwriting procedures,
whereby contributions are charged to reflect the health condition and family medical history of
the applicants. Pricing is based on assumptions, such as persistency, which consider past
experience and current trends, Contracts including specific risks and guarantees are tested for
profitability according to predefined procedures before approval.

Marine insurance covers the loss or damage of ships, cargo, terminals, and any transport by
which the property is transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and the final
destination.

Engineering Insurance is an insurance policy that covers a wide range of engineering related
risks. It is a comprehensive insurance that provides complete protection against risks associated

with erection, resting, and working of any machinery, plant or equipment.

Motor insurance comprises Comprehensive Insurance and Third-Party Insurance.
Comprehensive Insurance covers the policy holder for any loss or damage to the policy holders
vehicle caused either by themselves or a third party. It also covers any third party for loss or
damage caused by the policy holder. Third Party Insurance, on the other hand only covers the
third party for any loss of damage caused by the policy holder.

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to
their properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities
on their premises could also receive compensation for the loss of eamings caused by the inability
to use the insured properties in their business activities (business interruption cover).

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of causing harm
to third parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both
contractual and non-coniractual events.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{(continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance eontracts (continued)
3.3.2 Short-term insurance contracts (continued)

Short-duration life insurance contracts (credit life) protect the Company’s customers from the
consequences of events that would affect the ability of the customer or customer’s dependents
to maintain their current level of income. Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence of the
specified insurance event are either fixed or linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered
by the policyholder. There is no maturity or surrender benefits.

Products are reviewed by the business units on an annual basis to confirm, or otherwise, that
pricing assumptions remain appropriate. Analysis is performed on earnings and liability
movements to understand the source of any material variation in actual results from what was
expected. This confirms the appropriateness of assumptions used in underwriting and pricing,.

For all these insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums)
proportionally over the period of the coverage with the exception of marine cargo, where it is
assumed that each policy is earned fully in the quarter following the quarter in which it was
written; hence the unearned premium reserve (“UPR”) at the end of a particular quarter will be
equal to the written premium in that quarter and engineering where UPR is calculated on
increasing risk basis as required in the financial regulation issued by Insurance Authority. The
portion of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of
the reporting period is reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before
deduction of commissions. Earmed premiums are shown as net of gross written premium,
unearned premium revenue and unexpired risk reserve.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to profit or loss as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders.
They include direct claims settlement costs which arise from events that have occurred up to the
end of the reporting period even if they have not been reported to the Company. The Company
does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using
the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Company and statistical analyses for
the claims incurred but not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost of more complex
claims that may be affected by external factors (such as court decisions).

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves correspond to the provision representing future
claim expenses and related handling costs that are not case specific. It represents all other
expenses and costs that are related to the adjudication of claims but cannot be assigned to a
specific claim.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
.33 Insurance contracts (continued)
3.3.3 Long-term insurance contracts

The Company writes single premium savings plan (Everest Product) which is a hybrid between
Universal Life and a traditional Endowment plans for periods of 3, 5 or 7 years. The plan offers
guaranteed maturity benefit and death benefit as higher of policy value or single premium paid.
Policy value is calculated as the sum of general and separate account values as at the date of
valuation.

The general account value is invested in fixed deposits. The value of deposit as at the valuation
date is taken to be general account value.

Separate account is invested in international equities by the reinsurer who carries the
investment risk.

The reinsurer provides the Company with a policy wise separate account statement on a
monthly basis. Since this is a relatively new portfolio with no significant increases in separate
account value therefore, the Company takes reinsurance premium paid fo the reinsurer for
separate account investment as the separate account value. The mathematical reserve is the sum
of separate and general account values as at the valuation date.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in future is recorded when
the premiums are recognised. Premiums are shown before the deduction of commissions.
Claims and benefits payable to policyholders are recorded as expense when they are incurred.

3.3.4 Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for
losses on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification
requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that
do not meet these classification requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance
contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer
(inward reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Company
is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance contract assets.
These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term
receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in
accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due, The
Company assesses its reinsurance contract assets for impairment on a regular basis. If there is
objective evidence that the reinsurance contract asset is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance contract assets to its recoverable amount and recognises
that impairment loss in the profit or loss.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Insurance contracts (continued)
3.3.5 Deferred policy acquisition costs (“DAC")

Commissions and other acquisition costs for short-term insurance contracts that vary with and
are related to securing new contracts and renewing existing contracts are capitalised as an
intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred. DAC is
amortised over the terms of the policies as premium is earned.

3.3.6 Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) assets acquired in
settling claims (for example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third
parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). The allowance for salvage
recoveries is the amount that can be reasonably recovered from the disposal of the asset and
the allowance for subrogation reimbursements is the assessment of the amount that can be
recovered from the action against the liable third party. Estimates of salvage recoveries and
subrogation reimbursements are considered as an allowance in the measurement of the
insurance liability for claims and recognised within receivables when the liability is settled.

3.3.7 Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of the insurance contract liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates
of contractual future cash flows and claims handling and administrative expenses are used. Any
deficiency is immediately charged to profit or loss by establishing a provision for losses arising
from liability adequacy tests (the “unexpired risk reserve™).

3.4 Revenue recognition

3.4.1 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (or stage 3) (refer to
Note 3.16.1(ii)), for which interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to their amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss provision) and are recognised within
‘interest income’ in the statement of profit or loss.

3.4.2 Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s rights to receive
payment have been established.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.4.3 Rentalincome

Rental income from investment properties which are leased under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the reievant lease.

3.4.4 Reinsurance commission income

Reinsurance commission income received when the reinsurance premium is ceded based on the
terms and percentages agreed with the reinsurers is recognised as deferred commission income
(“DCI™). DCI is amortised over the terms of the policies as premium ceded fo reinsurers is
expensed.

3.5 Foreign currencies
3.5.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items incfuded in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency™).
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED™), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

3.5.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates, are generally recognised in the
the statement of profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit or loss, within “Investment income — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.6 Employee benefits
3.6.1 Defined contribution plan

U.AE. national employees of the Company are members of the Government-managed
retirement pension and social security benefit scheme pursuant to U.A.E. labour law no. 7 of
1999. The Company is required to contribute 12.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The employees and the
Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” respectively, to
the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retirement pension and
social security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to
“General and administrative expenses” within profit or loss.

3.6.2 Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

Provision is also made for the full amount of end of service indemnity due to non-U.A.E.
national employees in accordance with the UAE Labour Law and is calculated annually using
the projected unit credit method in accordance with IAS 19. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using profit
rates on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. Based upon an independent valuation, the present value of the future obligations is
in line with the outstanding balance.

3.6.3 Annualleave and leave passage

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entitlement to annual leave and leave
passage as a result of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year.

3.7 Property and equipment

Land and buildings are recognised at historical cost, less subsequent depreciation and impairment
if any for buildings only. All other property and equipment are carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.
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3.7 Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost or revalued
amounts of the assets, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 yeats
Computer equipment 4 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year
end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (note 3.10).

3.8 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Cost includes
the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if
the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the cost of day to day servicing of an investment

property.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis. The useful life of investment properties is estimated at 30 years.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

3.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software and are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and identified impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is charged on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in the
calculation of amortisation is 10 years.
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3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting peried, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-
financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years.
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3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
not recognized for future operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.12 Leases

The Company leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically annually renewable with
the option of termination during the contract period subject to serving relevant notice period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable,

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date,

. amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees,

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company

exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability,

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

. any initial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.
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3.12  Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. }H the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

The Company’s leases are assessed as short-term in nature and the payments made under the
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Accordingly, the Company does not
record any right of use assets.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in
the statement of financial position based on their nature.

3,13  Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as
a deduction from the proceeds.

3.14  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash and cash equivalents are within the scope of [FRS 9 expected credit loss calculations for
the assessment of impairment.

3.15 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured
at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the
maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

30



Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.15 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Measurement methods (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (continued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimate future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees paid or received that are integral
to the effective interest rate. When the Company revises the estimates of future cash flows, the
carrying amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the
new estimate discounted using the original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised
in profit or loss.

-Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or a financial liability at its fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or a financial liability not at fair value
through profit or less (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are incremental and directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction
costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.
Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (“ECL") is recognised
for financial assets measured af amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured
at FVTOCI, which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is newly originated.

3.15.1 Financial assets
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

. Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™);
. Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI™); or
. Amortised cost

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:
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3.15 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.15.1 Financial assets {continued)

M

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the
issuer’s perspective, such as loans and government and corporate bonds,

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on:

the Company’s business model for managing the assets; and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on those factors, the Company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following
three measurement categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (“SPPI”), and that are not designated at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit
loss allowance recognised and measured as described in note 3.16.1 (ii). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “Interest income™ using the effective interest
rate method.

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI”}, and that are not designated
at FVTPL, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrving amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit or loss and
recognised in “Investment income — Net”. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in “Interest income™ using the effective interest rate method.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and presented net within “Investment income — Net” in the period in which it arises.
Interest income from these assets is included in “Interest income” using the effective
interest rate method.
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Business mode!

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash
flows. That is, whether the Company’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows
from the asset or is to collect the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of
the assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes),
then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business and measured at FVTPL.
Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s
performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated.

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized
financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect the
commencement of a new business model. The Company reassess its business models each
reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the preceding
period. For the current and prior reporting periods, the Company has not identified a change in
its business models,

SPPI

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash
flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement, i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial
asset is classified at FVTPL.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first
reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent and
none occurred during the year.
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3.15.1 Financial assets (continued)

6] Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective, that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that
evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments include
basic ordinary shares.

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the
Company’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at FVTOCI. The Company’s policy is to designate equity investments at FVTOCI
when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When
this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when representing a return on
such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as “Investment income™ when the
Company’s right to receive payments is established.

(ii) Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses ("ECL™)
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The Company
recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL
reflects:

. An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

. The time value of money; and

. Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort

at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other
financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. For
insurance and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by
[FRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recogaition of the
recejvables.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. Details of ECL measurement methodology are disclosed in Note 33.2.
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3.15.1 Financial assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue costs or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Company’s counterparties operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
ecoriomic information that relate to the Company’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;
. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular

financial instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time;

. the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;
. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause;

a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;
an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or

technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the -

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial asset has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near ferm, and

(iii)  Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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3.15.1 Financial assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment (continued)

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due,

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has
stopped pursuing the recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to credit loss expense.

(iii)  Derecognition

"Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i)
the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Company has not retained control.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, among others, the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficuities of the debtor. Impaired financial assets are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

3.15.2 Financial liabilities

The Company recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the contractual
rights and obligations in the contract. All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is not at FVTPL) transaction costs that are
directly attributable to issuing the financial liability. Financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. :

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
canceiled or expires.

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities included in insurance and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. The fair value of a non-interest-bearing
lability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the liability is less than one year,
discounting is omitted.
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3.16  Offsetting of financial assefs and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net in the statement of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts or when the
Company intends to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

3.17 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividend is approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

3.18 Fixed deposits

Fixed deposits are deposits held with banks with original maturities of more than three months,
which are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Fixed
deposits are within the scope of IFRS 9 expected credit loss calculation for the assessment of
impairment.

3.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs} and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings, pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets, is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3 to these
financial statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the pericd of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

4.1 Measurement of the expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance

The measurement of ECL is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology,
models and data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are disclosed in Note 33.2.
The following components have a major impact on the credit loss allowance for debt
instruments carried at amortised cost, FVTOCI investments, bank balances and fixed deposits:
definition of default, significant increase in credit risk, probability of default (“PD™), exposure
at default (“EAD™), and loss given default (“.GD”) and the historical loss experience per
ageing bucket has the major impact on the credit loss allowance for Insurance and other
receivables. The Company regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models
to reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss
experience.
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4.2 The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insuranece contracts

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
reporting date. The liability for outstanding claims includes the cost of claims reported but yet
to be paid, claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™), and the estimated expenses to be
incurred in settling claims,

The process of establishing liability estimates is subject to considerable variability as it requires
the use of informed estimates and judgments. These estimates and judgments are based on
numerous factors and may be revised as additional experience becomes available or as
regulations change. The liability for outstanding claims is estimated using the input of
assessment for individual cases reported to the Company as well as assessments performed by
external loss adjustors where deemed necessary. Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions
are estimated individually. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding the risk of major storm, tempest and flood scenarios that
exist in the UAE to estimate its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in
establishing claims provisions, it is possible that the final outcome will prove to be different
from the original liability established.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the
estimation of the cost of settling claims, where more information about the claim event is
available, Classes of business which have a longer reporting tail and where the IBNR
proportion of the total reserve is therefore high will typically display greater variations between
initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty in estimating
these liabilities. For the short-tailed classes, claims are typically reporied soon after the claim
event, and tend to display less variation. In calculating the required levels of provisions, the
Company’s internal and external independent actuary use a variety of estimation techniques,
generally based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the
development pattern of the current claims will be consistent with past experience.

In arriving at booked claims provisions, management also make allowance for changes or
uncertainties which may create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the
cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled
claims including:

. changes in patterns of claim incidence, reporting, processing, finalisation and payment;
. changes in the legal environment.

. the impact of inflation (both economic/wage and superimposed).

. changes in the mix of business.

. the impact of large losses.

. the effects of infiation.

. movements in industry benchmarks.

. medical and technological developments.

. changes in policyholder behaviour.
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4.2 The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts
{continued)

The methods used to analyse past claim experience and to project future claim experience are
largely determined by the available data and the nature of the portfolio. The projections given
by the different methodologies assist in setting the range of possible outcomes. The most
appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the
business class and the extent of the development of each accident year.

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being
measured on a case by case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of the development and incidence of these large claims.

Outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported are calculated gross of reinsurance. A
separate estimate is made of the amounts recoverable from reinsurers and third parties under
reinsurance contracts based on the gross provisions. Future cash flows are not discounted for
time value of money.

The Company writes single premium savings plan (Everest Product) which is a hybrid between
Universal Life and a traditional Endowment plans. The plan offers guaranteed maturity benefit
and death benefit as higher of policy value or single premium paid. The policy value is
calculated as the sum of general and separate account values as at the date of valuation.

The general account value is invested in fixed deposits. The value of deposit as at the valuation
date is taken to be general account value. The separate account is invested in international
equities by the reinsurer who carries the investment risk. The downside risk is hedged by the
reinsurer through the purchase of call options to ensure separate account returns does not
become negative. The reinsurer provides the Company with a policy wise separate account
statement on a monthly basis. Since this is a relatively new portfolio with no significant
increases in separate account value therefore, the Company has taken reinsurance premium
paid to the reinsurer for separate account investment as the separate account value. The
mathematical reserve is the sum of separate and general account values as at the valuation date.

Mathematical reserves of long-term life Everest product include uneamed portion of revenue
(commission income) to allow for expense reserves.

4.3  Liability adequacy testing

When anticipated losses and loss adjustment expenses are expected to exceed the recorded net
unearned premium reserves (net of reinsurer share of unearned premium reserves), an
unexpired risk reserve (“URR™) is recorded. For the purpose of determining whether a URR is
required, insurance contracts are segregated into various classes of business (i.e. medical,
motar, fire, property, etc). If the premium deficiency is identified for a particular class of
business, the entire deficiency is immediately recognised in the statement of profit or [oss.
Unexpired risk reserve is estimated using anticipated loss and loss adjustment expenses of the
current year. Actual losses in the future period may be materially different from management
estimation and may have material impact on the financial staternents.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

4.4 Sale of land and building

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be included in profit or
loss when the item is derecognized. The disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment may
oceur in a variety of ways (e.g. by sale, by entering into a finance lease or by donation). The date
of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of
that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is
satisfied in IFRS 15. IFRS 16 applies to disposal by a sale and leaseback.

Control of an asset refers to the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from, the asset. Control includes the ability to prevent other entities from
directing the use of, and obtaining the benefits from, an asset. The benefits of an asset are the
_potential cash flows (inflows or savings in outflows) that can be obtained directly or indirectly in
many ways, such as by using the asset to preduce goods or provide services (including public
services), using the asset to enhance the value of other assets, using the asset to settle liabilities or
reduce expenses, selling or exchanging the asset, pledging the asset to secure a loan and holding
the asset. Management has assessed transfer of control on the sale of land and building and has
concluded that the purchaser had access to the land and building prior to 31 December 2020 which
allowed the purchaser to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from, the land and building (refer Note 5).
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

5 Property and equipment (continued)
5.1 Sale of land and building

As per the signed “Property Sale and Purchase Agreement” entered into between the Company
and a third-party purchaser dated 17 December 2020, the Company sold its land and building
in Al Nakheel area in Ras Al Khaimah to the purchaser, The sale resulted in a gain on sale of
AED 3.82 millien which was recorded during the year ended 31 December 2020. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Company collected the proceeds from the sale of the land
and building amounting to AED 6.55 million, including value added tax (Note 11).

6 Investment properties
Land Buildings Total
AED AED AED
Cost
At 31 December 2019 2,500,000 16,908,529 19,408,529
Addition _ - - -
At 31 December 2020 2,500,000 16,908,529 19,408,529
Disposals during the year {2,500,000)  (16,908,529)  (19,408.529)
At 31 December 2021 - - -
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2019 - 3,593,524 3,593,524
Charge for the year (Note 27) - 518,919 518,919
At 31 December 2020 - 4,112,443 4,112,443
Charge for the year - 42,651 42,651
Disposals during the year (Note 27) - (4,155,094) (4,155,094)
At 31 December 2021 - - -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 - - -
At 31 December 2020 2,500,000 12,796,086 15,296,086

The Company’s investment properties were measured at cost. At 31 December 2020, the
Company held a plot of land located in Sharjah, UAE and 4 villas located in Dubai, UAE.

The Company’s investment properties were classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2020,

The fair value of the Company’s investments properties as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
AED 17.7 million and were arrived at on the basis of valuations carried by an independent external
professionally qualified valuer who held a recognized relevant professional qualification and had
appropriate market experience in the valuation of properties in the United Arab Emirates at the
time of valuation.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, management sold the investment properties to
independent third parties for AED 20.1 million which has resulted in a gain on disposal of
AED 4.8 million (Note 23).
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

{continued)

6 Investment properties (continued)

The property rental income earned by the Company from its investment properties and the direct

operating expenses related to the investment properties are as follows:

Rental income
Direct operating expenses

Net income from investment properties (Note 23)

7 Intangible assets

Cost

At 31 December 2019
Additions during the year
At 31 December 2020
Additions during the year
At 31 December 2021

Accumulated amortization
At 31 December 2019
Charge for the year (Note 27)
At 31 December 2020
Charge for the year (Note 27)
At 31 December 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021
At 31 December 2020

2020
AED

699,853
(111,080)

588,773

Computer
software
AED

14,812,395

14,812,395
244,589
15,056,984

5,472,646

1,481,240

6,953,886
1,483,278

8437164

6,619,820

7,858,509
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

8 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI

The Company’s financial investments at the end of reporting peried are detailed below.

2021 2020

AED AED

FVTOCI 112,724,162 73,079,327
Less: Allowance for impairment (188,686) (172,898)

112,535,476 72,906,429

The composition of financial investment split between inside the UAFE and outside the UAE is
as follows:

Inside UAE Qutside UAE Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

AED AED AED AED AED AED
FVTOCI:
Quoted debt 44,281,341 46,031,582 67,520,430 11,467,706 111,801,771 57,499,288
Quoted equity 733,705 15,407,141 - - 733,705 15,407,141

45,015,046 61,438,723 67,520,430 11,467,706 112,535,476 72,906,429

The Company has designated all investments in equity and debt instruments that are not held for
trading as at FVTOCI. Debt instruments carry interest at the rate of 1.96% to 6.75% (2020: 3.75%
to 7.50%) per annum. They are redeemable at par from 2022 to 2033 (2020: 2021 to 2030) based
on their maturity dates. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk for debt instruments
and the carrying amount reflected above represents the Comparny’s maximum exposure to credit
risk for such assets.

During the year, the Company has charged amortisation of premium on debt instruments to profit
or loss amounting to AED 272,413 (2020: AED 349,764).

The financial assets held at FVTOCI disclosed above include quoted debt investments amounting

to AED 69.6 million as at 31 December 2021 which are pledged against the bank borrowing (Note
18).
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)
8 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) (continued)

The movement in the financial investiments is as follows:

FVTOCI - FVTOCI -
FVTPL debt equity
AED AED AED
Balance at 31 December 2019 4,599,938 71,846,613 713,556
Additions during the year - 32,030,408 14,907,129
Proceeds from disposals during the year (4,187,440) (48,461,464) -
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of
financial investments (Note 23) (412,498) 2,854,233 -
Net change in fair value - (352,550) (213,544)
Amortisation of premium on FVTOCI
_ debt instruments to profit or loss - (349,764) -
Less: Allowance for impairment - {68,188) -
Balance at 31 December 2020 - 57,499,288 15,407,141
Additions during the year - 100,598,176 165,972
Proceeds from disposals during the year - (37,970,372) (15,449,495)
Realised gain on disposal of financial
investments (Note 23) - 1,102,114 376,394
Maturity during the year - (7,346,000) -
Net change in fair value - (1,793,234) 233,693
Ameortisation of premium on FVTOCI debt
instruments to profit or loss - (272,413) -
Less: Allowance for impairment - (15,788) -
Balance at 31 December 2021 - 111,801,771 733,705
Details of allowance for impairment are as follows:
2021 2020
AED AED
Balance as at the beginning of the year 172,898 104,710
Provision of impairment during the vear 15,788 68,188
Balance as at the end of the year 188,686 172,898

There were no reclassifications between financial investment categories during 2021 and 2020.

All the investments in scope of the impairment model are in Stage 1 and there have been no

movements between the stages during the year.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

9 Statutory deposit

A deposit of AED 10 million (31 December 2020: AED 10 million) has been placed with one
of the banks, in accordance with Article (42) of the UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2007. This
deposit has been pledged to the bank as security against a guarantee issued by the bank in favour
of the CBUAE (formerly, the UAE Insurance Authority (“IA™)) for the same amount. This
deposit cannot be withdrawn without prior approval of the CBUAE (formerly, the IA) and bears

an interest rate of 0.5% per annum (2020: 2.4% per annum).

10 Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets

Insurance contract liabilities

- Qutstanding claims

- Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve
- Claims incurred but not reported

- Unexpired risk reserve

- Unearned premium

- Mathematical reserve

Reinsurance contract assets

- Outstanding claims

- Claims incurred but not reported
- Unexpired risk reserve

- Unearned premiums

- Mathematical reserve

Insurance contract liabilities - net

- Outstanding claims

- Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve
- Claims incurred but not reported

- Unexpired risk reserve

- Unearned premiums

- Mathematical reserve

2021 2020
AED AED
142,334,853 81,495,011
4,601,892 2,840,928
46,386,077 52,610,060
17,730,710 24,089,413
189,547,859 173,393,182
14,961,082 14,264,479
415,562,473 348,693,073
(106,204,231) (58,411,010)
(30,518,707) (27,766,148)
(13,679,717 (21,095,254)
(65,177,742) (57,410,980)
(1,711,505) (1.432,971)
(217,291,902)  (166,116,363)
36,130,622 23,084,001
4,601,892 2,840,928
15,867,370 24,843,912
4,050,993 2,994,159
124,370,117 115,982,202
13,249,577 12,831,508
198,270,571 182,576,710

The insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets certified by the Company’s appointed
external actuary according to the requirements of the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies
issued by the UAE Insurance Authority amounted to AED 416 million and AED 217 million
respectively as at 31 December 2021 (2020: AED 349 million and AED 166 million respectively).
Claims incurred but not reported have been calculated on a best estimate basis, The actuary used Chain
Ladder (“CL"), Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”), Expected Loss Ratios (“ELR”) and Cape Cod (“CC™)
methods to estimate the ultimate claims. After applying each of the methods listed, the actuary takes

a weighted average of the results of the methods.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

{continued)

10 Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance confract assets (continued)

Mathematical reserve - gross
Total at the beginning of the year
Increase during the year

Total at the end of the year

Mathematical reserve - reinsurance
Total at the beginning of the year
Increase during the year

Total at the end of the year

2021 2020

AED AED
14,264,479 10,299,653
696,603 3,964,826
14,961,082 14,264,479
2021 2020

AED AED
(1,432,971) (1,119,404)
(278,534) (313.567)
(1,711,505) (1,432,971
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

{continued)

11 Insurance and other receivables

Premium receivables

Reinsurance companies’ receivables

Insurance agents and brokers receivables

Due from related parties (Note 26)

Accrual of interest and other income

Advances and prepayments

Receivable from sale of land and building (Note 5.1)

Other receivables

Less: Allowance for impairment

2021 2020

AED AED
126,726,429 143,696,633
40,074,434 25,877,294
1,350,299 392,495
21,854,463 26,162,888
9,569,487 8,640,258
7,117,445 10,007,270

- 6,552,743

1,288,055 696,890
207,980,612 222,026,471
(32,575,209) (54,708,082)
175,405,403 167,318,389

The Company always measures the loss allowance for receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. The expected credit losses on insurance receivables are estimated using a provision matrix
by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current
financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses the potential customers’ credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Of the gross premium receivables balance at the end of year,
AED 13 million (2020: AED 13 million) is due from the Company’s [argest customer.

Ageing of premium receivables and due from related parties:

ECL Rates

2021
Not due 1%
0 - 90 days 4%
91 - 180 days 14%
181 - 270 days 31%
271 — 365 days 49%
Over 365 days 84%

Less: Allowance for
impairment

ECL Rates

2020
1%
5%

15%

34%

53%

36%

2021 2020
AED AED
75,978,300 108,040,215
37,903,861 8,388,112
9,266,786 6,625,733
3,697,809 5,269,576
3,415,787 4,788,025
18,318,349 36,747,860
148,580,892 169,859,521
(22,464,901) (50,253,986)
126,115,991 119,605,535
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11  Insurance and other receivables (continued)

Ageing of reinsurance companies’ receivables:

ECL Rates

2021
Not due i%
0 - 90 days 4%
91 - 180 days 7%
181 - 270 days 16%
271 — 365 days 24%
Over 365 days 25%

Less: Allowance for
impairment

ECL Rates
2020

1%
4%
6%
16%
24%
25%

Ageing of insurance agents and brokers receivables:

Not due

0 - 90 days

91 - 180 days
181 - 270 days
271 — 365 days
Over 365 days

Less: Allowance for
impairment

Movements in the allowance for impairment was as follows:

Balance at 1 January

Charge for impairment during the year
Write-offs during the year

Balance at 31 December

2021 2020

AED AED
699,961 470,561
9,937,632 10,528,789
10,268,980 5,584,146
4,208,453 538,092
3,021,499 551,077
11,937,909 8,204,629
40,074,434 25,877,294
(7,803,483) (4,060,850)
32,270,951 21,816,404
2021 2020

AED AED
1,350,299 392,495
1,350,299 392,495
(1,350,299) (392,495)
2021 2020

AED AED
54,708,082 39,036,998
187,850 16,071,084
(22,320,723) (400,000)
32,575,209 54,708,082

The balances written off during the year 2021 predominantly relate to receivables that were fully
provided for as at 31 December 2020. Management has assessed those receivables to be non-
recoverable during the year and wrote them off after obtaining the necessary approvals.
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12 Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020

AED AED

Cash in hand 24,567 28,540

Current accounts with banks 42,032,940 19,653,651
Fixed deposits with original maturities of three months or

less 15,335,425 14,000,000

57,392,932 29,682,191

Fixed deposits with original maturities of three months or less carry interest at the rate of
2.65% (2020: 2.9%) per annum.

13  Bank balances and fixed deposits

2021 2020

AED AED
Current accounts with a Lebanese bank 3,988,161 -
Allowance for impairment (1,394,875) -
Total current accounts with a Lebanese bank 2,593,286 -
Fixed deposits with original maturity of greater than three

*months 189,330,246 180,346,663

Fixed deposits under lien 600,000 950,000
Allowance for impairment (137,913 (163,509)
Total fixed deposits 189,792,333 181,133,154
Total banks balances and fixed deposits 192,385,619 181,133,154

The exposure to a Lebanese Bank does not meet the requirements to be classified as Cash and
cash equivalents, as cash and cash equivalents are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, The balances with a Lebanese bank do not satisfy the criteria of cash and cash equivalents
and were classified separately.

Certain fixed deposits with carrying amount of AED 600,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
AED 950,000) are under lien against letters of guarantee (Note 29).

The interest rate on fixed deposits with banks ranges between 0.5% to 4.8% (2020: 1% to 4.8%)
per annum. All fixed deposits are held in local banks in the United Arab Emirates.
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13 Bank balances and fixed deposits

Details of allowance for impairment as per IFRS 9 are as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 163,509 121,016
Provision of impairment during the year 1,369,279 42,493
Balance at the end of the year 1,532,788 163,509

All the bank balances and fixed deposits in scope of the impairment model are in Stage 1 and there
have been no movements between the stages during the year.

14  Share capital

2021 2020
AED AED
Authorised, issued and fully paid:
121.275 million ordinary shares of AED | each
(2020: 121.275 million ordinary shares of AED | each) 121,275,000 121,275,000

At the Annual General Meeting held on 31 March 2020, the shareholders approved a 5% of
share capital bonus share amounting to AED 5.775 million for 2019 which resulted in an
increase in the number of ordinary shares from 115.5 million to 121.275 million shares. The
Company has amended its Articles of Association to reflect the share capital increase after
receiving the necessary approvals from the Securities and Commodities Authority (“SCA™)
and the UAE Insurance Authority.

15 Reserves
15.1 Statutory reserve

In accordance with U.A.E. Federal Law Number (2} of 2015, as amended, and the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Company has established a statutory reserve by appropriation of 10%
of profit for each year until the reserve equals 50% of the paid-up share capital. This reserve is not
available for distribution except as stipulated by the Law.

15.2  Voluntary reserve
As per the Company’s Articles of Association, voluntary reserve can be created upon a
recommendation of the Board of Directors and this reserve cannot be uiilised for any other purpose

unless approved by the Shareholders’ General Assembly. No transfer to voluntary reserve was
made during 2021 and 2020.
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15  Reserves (continued)

15.3 Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Article 34 of the Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. (23)
of 2019, the Company has transferred AED 922,585 from ‘Retained earnings’ to the ‘Reinsurance
Reserve’ being 0.5% of the total insurance premium ceded to reinsurers during the year ended 31
December 2021 (year ended 31 December 2020: AED 949,485). The Company shall accumulate
such provision year on year and shall not dispose of the reserve without the written approval of the
assistant governor of the banking and insurance supervision department within CBUAE.

16  Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

2021 2020
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,064,285 5,680,690
Charge for the year (Note 27.1) 1,136,399 941,523
Amounts paid during the year (1,085,427 (557,928)
Balance at the end of the year 6,115,257 6,064,285
17  Imsurance and other payables
2021 2020
AED AED
Payables to third party administrators 35,049,433 28,230,790
Reinsurance companies’ payables 42,181,096 27,591,653
Due to related parties (Note 26) 13,463,225 3,092,025
Accrued expenses 6,837,103 14,532,545
Employees' benefits payable 2,074,446 2,257,841
Commission payable 18,477,442 17,534,856
Other payable balances 3,835,190 4,644,679
Dividends payable 1,925,372 1,945,372
123,843,307 99,829,761

Accrued expenses relate to amounts incurred in the normal course of business such as Director’s
remuneration, reinsurance accruals and fees payable to regulators and other professionals. These
will be paid out in 2022,
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17  Imsurance and other payables (continued)

The Company’s insurance and other payables geographic distribution was as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Inside U.A.E. 81,662,211 72,238,108
Outside U.AE 42,181,096 27,591,653
123,843,307 99,829,761

18  Bank borrowing
2021 2020
AED AED
Short-term bank loan (Note 26) 33,056,997 -

During the year, the Company obtained a short-term toan amounting AED 33,056,997 to fund the
purchase of investment securities, The loan is secured by assignment of debt investments in the
amount of AED 69.6 million as at 31 December 2021 in favor of the National Bank of Ras Al
Khaimah, the Parent Company (Note 8). The loan carries an interest rate of (.85% per annum plus
3 Month USD LIBOR and matures on 8 June 2022.

19 Deferred commission income

2021 2020

AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 19,240,758 24,611,953
Commission received during the year 14,683,138 15,432,999
Commission income earned during the year (18,360,602) (20,804,194)
Balance at the end of the year 15,563,294 19,240,758

Of the deferred commission income balance as at 31 December 2021, AED 11,331,949 (2020:
AED 10,249.870) is expected to be earned no more than 12 months after the reporting period
and AED 4,231,345 (2020: AED 8,990,888) is expected to be earned more than 12 months
after the reporting period,
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20  Deferred acquisition costs

Balance at the beginning of the year
Acquisition costs paid during the year
Amortisation charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year

2021 2020

AED AED
24,088,139 33,296,302
75,476,830 72,579,564
(76,336,545) (81,787.727)
23,228,424 24,088,139

Of the deferred acquisition costs balance as at 31 December 2021, AED 19,167,846 (2020:
AED 15,368,166) is expected to be amortised no more than [ 2 months after the reporting period
and AED 4,060,578 (2020: AED 8,719,973) is expected to be amortised more than 12 months

after the reporting period.

In accordance with the CBUAE (formerly, the 1A) Board of Directors’ Decision ne. (49) of
2019, the Company amended the accounting for the Credit Life policies sold through the Parent
company with effect from 1 May 2020. The in-force policies were treated in accordance with
the Article 15 of the CBUAE (formerly, the 1A) Board of Director's Decision No. 49 of 2019,
Policies written after 16 October 2020 follow the commission caps stipulated by the regulation.

21  Net insurance premium revenue

Gross written premiums

Gross written premiums

Change in unearned premiums (Note 10)

Change in unexpired risk reserve (“URR™) (Note 10)

Reinsurance premium ceded
Reinsurance premiums ceded
Change in reinsurance share of
unearned premiums (Note 10)
Change in reinsurance share of
unexpired risk reserve (“URR™) (Note 10)

Net insurance premium revenue

2021 2020

AED AED
469,148,327 491,803,215
(16,154,677) 76,890,466
6,358,703 8,750,478
459,352,353 © 577,444,159
(184,516,982)  (189,897,086)
7,766,762 (21,223,068)
(7,415,537) (5,319,117
(184,165,757) (216,439,271
275,186,596 361,004,888
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22 Interest income

2021 2020
AED AED
Interest income from fixed deposits 6,620,378 6,209,575
Interest income from financial investments at FVTPL and
FVTOCI 1,852,817 2,281,121
8,473,195 8,490,696
23  Investment income — (net)
2021 2020
AED AED
Dividend income from financial investments 774,714 34,291
Net income from investment properties (Note 6) 183,929 588,773
Realised loss on disposal of finaneial investments at
FVTPL (Note 8) - (412,498)
Realised gain on disposal of financial investments at
FVTOCI (Note 8) 1,102,114 2,854,233
Realised gain on disposal of investment properties
(Note 6) 4,805,380 -
6,866,137 3,064,799

24 Social contributions

Social contributions during the year amounted to AED 17,632 (2020: AED 5,120).

25  Basic and diluted earnings per share

2021 2020
AED AED
Profit for the year (in AED) 10,471,855 13,475,461
Weighted average number of shares 121,275,000 121,275,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in AED) 0.09 0.11

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the number of
weighted average shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share is
equivalent to basic earnings per share as the Company did not issue any new instrument that
would impact earnings per share when executed.
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26  Related party balances and transactions

The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums, settles claims, and enters
into transactions with other business enterprises that fall within the definition of a related party
as defined by International Accounting Standard 24. Related parties include the Company’s
major shareholders, directors and businesses controlled by them and their families over which
they exercise significant management influence as well as key management personnel. The
Company’s management believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly
different from those that could have been obtained from third parties.

26.1  Amounts due from / (to) related parties included in the statement of financial position were

as follows:
2021 2020
AED AED
Due from Parent company (premiums receivable) 9,036,076 14,987,279
Due from directors (premiums receivable) 6,300 25,973
Due from other related parties under common control
(premiums receivable) 12,812,087 11,149,636
Total due from related parties (Note 11) 21,854,463 26,162,888
Due to Parent company (commission payable) (13,428,722) (3.032,592)
Due to other related parties under common control
{claims payable) (34,503) (59,433)
Total due to related parties (Note 17) (13,463,225) (3,092,025)
Fixed deposits placed with Parent company 41,725,250 36,450,000
Bank balances placed with Parent company 35,988,821 18,107,377
Bank borrowing (parent company) (Note 18) (33,056,997) -
Allowance for impairment on premiums receivable
{parent company) (66,004) (428,274)

Balances due from and to related parties are interest free and repayable on demand, except for the
bank borrowing disclosed in Note 18.
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26  Related party balances and transactions (continued)

26.2  Transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Gross written premiums (Parent company) 127,788,929 114,755,508
Gross written premiums (directors) 98,585 121,321
Gross written premiums (other related parties under
common control) 26,490,028 21,010,545
Commission expenses (Parent Company) (53,632,507) (39,202,542)
Claims paid (Parent company) (61,218,606) (47,572,285)
Claims paid (other related parties under common
control) (1,315,263) (2,183,946)
Rent expenses (parent company) (475,000) -
Internal audit fee (parent company) (500,000) -
-Interest income {parent company) 616,282 1,113,859
Dividends (Parent company) (7,687,069) -
Dividends (directors) (1,511,200) -
Interest cost {Parent company) (23,648) -
Release of / (provision for) impairment (Parent
company) (362,270) 376,466

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has sold financial assets at FVTOCI
amounting to AED 53.4 million (31 December 2020: AED 52.6 million) and purchased
financial assets at FVTOCI amounting to AED 100.8 million (31 December 2020: AED 47.2
million) through the Parent company to / from external parties.

26.3  Compensation of Board of Directors and key management personnel were as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Short-term benefits 6,010,314 5,208,653
Long-term benefits 266,836 162,366
Board of Directors’ remuneration 1,000,000 1,350,000
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27  General and administrative expenses

Staff costs (Note 27.1)

Professional fees

Marketing expenses

Communication expenses

Travel and entertainment expenses
Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 5)
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 6)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 7)
Rental costs — operating leases

Administration and license expenses

IT, utilities and maintenance

Supervision and training fees

Bank charges

Other expenses

27.1  Staff costs

Salaries and atlowances

Employees’ end of service benefits (Note 16)
Staff insurance

Other staff benefits

2021 2020

AED AED
34,540,893 30,356,717
2,108,197 4,134,659
315,386 239,306
814,509 1,146,478
154,436 111,749
1,114,034 1,449,830
42,651 518,919
1,483,278 1,481,240
1,148,805 713,456
907,538 811,640
3,983,125 3,057,629
2,271,777 2,379,387
911,493 - 1,007,343
5,481,842 4,664,102
55,277,964 52,072,455
2021 2020

AED AED
27,506,404 24,045,008
1,136,399 941,523
1,668,633 1,553,308
4,229,457 3,816,878
34,540,893 30,356,717
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28  Other income / (expenses)

Other income or expenses represent net expenses that are not attributable to the underwriting
activities of the Company.

29  Contingent liabilities

2021 2020
AED AED
Letters of guarantee 10,567,481 10,619,972

The above bank puarantees were issued in the normal course of business.

The Company, in common with the significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in
the normal course of its business. The Company, based on independent legal advice, does not
expect that the outcome of these court cases will have a material impact on the Company’s
financial performance or financial position.

30 Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and
the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract,
this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The Company writes the general, medical and
life insurance contracts. General insurance contracts of the Company include Liability,
Property, Motor, Fire, Marine and Engineering insurance contracts, Medical insurance
contracts include both individual and group medical insurance contracts. Life insurance
contracts include group, retail and credit life insurance contracts.

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and
benefit payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of
long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves
are available to cover these liabilities.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk
Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies. The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its
activities.

63



Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

30 Insurance risk (continued)
Risk management framework (continued)

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company's Audit and Risk Committee oversees how management monitors compliance
with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company's
Audit and Risk Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit and Risk functions.

Two key elements of the Company's insurance risk management framework are its
underwriting strategy and reinsurance strategy, as discussed below.

Underwriting strategy

The Company's underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number
of similar risks. This reduces the variability of the portfolio’s cutcome.

The underwriting strategy is set out by the Company that establishes the classes of business to
be written, the territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors in which
the Company is prepared to underwrite. This strategy is cascaded by the business units to
individual underwriters through detailed underwriting authorities that set out the limits that any
one underwriter can write by line size, class of business, territory and industry in order to ensure
appropriate risk selection within the portfolio.

Reinsurance sérategy

The Company reinsures a portion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its
exposure to losses and protect capital resources.

Ceded reinsurance contains credit risk, as discussed in the financial risk management note. The
Company has a Reinsurance department that is responsible for setting the minimum security
criteria for acceptable reinsurance and monitoring the purchase of reinsurance by the business
units against those criteria. The department monitors developments in the reinsurance
programme and its ongoing adequacy.

The Company enters into a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsurance

treaties to reduce the net exposure to the Company. In addition, underwriters are allowed to
buy facultative reinsurance in certain specified circumstances.
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30 Insurance risk (continued)

30.1 Frequency and severity of claims

The Company manages insurance risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance
arrangements and proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that
the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and
geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria, as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, re-price the risk, impose
deductibles and reject the payment of a fraudulent claim for both short and long-term insurance
contracts. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment of
some or all costs (for example, subrogation).

The reinsurance arrangements include excess of loss and catastrophe coverage. The effect of
such reinsurance arrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a
set limit of AED 350,000 for motor insurance and-AED 50,000 for medical insurance class of
business in any policy (2020: AED 350,000 for motor insurance and AED 50,000 for medical
insurance). On 1 April 2021 the [imit for medical changed to AED 100,000 so all the medical
claims incurred from 1 April 2021 onwards will be considered as per AED 100,000, In addition
to the overall Company reinsurance program, business units are permitted to purchase
additional facultative reinsurance protection, if needed. Whenever required, the Company
engages professional competent surveyors for claims management. The surveyors using their
market knowledge and expertise may investigate and recommend adjustments to claims. The
claims are reviewed individually at least once a year and adjusted to reflect the latest
information on the underlying facts, current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions,
and other factors.

The following tables disclose the concentration of insurance liabilities by line of business. The

amounts are the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and net of reinsurance)
arising from the insurance contracts:
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30 Insurance risk (continued)

30.1 Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

2021 2020
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Marine and
aviation 5,002,760  (4,039,770) 962,990 4,280,583 (3,243,443) 1,037,140
Motor 67,220,181 (26,894,851) 40,325,330 61,590,873 (26,747,358) 34,843,515
Engineering, Fire,
General accidents,
and others 127,782,119 {107,669,927) 20,112,192 101,598,640 (80,696,018) 20,902,622
Medical 161,060,636 {44,173,122) 116,887,508 159,968,321 (49.840,238) 110,128,083
Life 54,496,783 {34,514,232) 19,982,551 21,254,656 {5,589.306) 15,665,350

415,562,473  (217,291,902) 198,270,571 348,603,073 (166.116,363) 182,576,710

30.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable
for all insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered
after the end of the contract term. The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree
of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company,
where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the
insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For some insurance contracts,
the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations
between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of
estimating these liabilities. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid,
the Company considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of
settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. The Company involved an
independent external actuary as well. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or
projected separately in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and
incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of
the expected subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps
to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given
the uncertainty in establishing some claims provisions, it is possible that the final outcome will
prove to be different from the original liability established.

The liability for these contracts comprises a provision for IBNR and a provision for reported
claims not yet paid at the end of the reporting period.

The amount of insurance claims is in some cases sensitive to the level of court awards and to
the development of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort,
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30  Imsurance risk (continued)
30.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of
provisions. This provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being
projected. The projections given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the
range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into
account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

in calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s
estimation techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based
upon actual claims experience using predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important
assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years’ experience, adjusted
for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and historical claims
inflation. :

The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year before and after reinsurance are
analysed below by line of business where the insured operates for current and prior year
premium earned.

2021 2020

Gross loss Net loss Gross loss Net loss

ratio ratio ratio ratio

Motor 64% 71% 78% 62%

Marine and aviation -7% -20% 28% 29%

Medical 82% 81% 80% 79%

Life 58% 13% 34% 16%
Engineering, fire, general

accidents and others Ti% 18% 46% 29%

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the
year end are adequate. However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ
from the claims liabilities provided in the financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities
are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of
specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.

A hypothetical 1% change in the loss ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact net underwriting
income / (loss) as follows:
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30  Imsurance risk (continued)

30.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future elaim payments {continued)

2021 2020
AED AED

Impact of change in loss ratio by +/- 1%
Motor 321,249 209,066
Marine and aviation 9,496 2,663
Medical 1,654,178 1,802,827
Life 535,801 86,053
Engineering, fire, general accidents and others 241,710 87,258
2,762,434 2,277,867

30.3 Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with'insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables
that complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company uses assumptions based on a
mixture of internal and market data to measure its claims liabilities. Internal data is derived
mostly from the Company’s quarterly claims reports and screening of the actual insurance
contracts carried out at the end of the reporting period to derive data for the contracts held. The
Company has reviewed the individual contracts and the actual exposure years of claims. This
information is used to develop scenarios related to the latency of claims that are used for the
projections of the ultimate number of claims.

The Company uses several statistical methods to incorporate the various assumptions made in
order to estimate the ultimate cost of claims. The two methods more commonly used are the
chain-ladder and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods.

Chain-ladder methods may be applied to premiums, paid claims or incurred claims (for
example, paid claims plus case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of
historical claims development factors and the selection of estimated development factors based
on this historical pattern. The selected development factors are then applied to cumulative
claims data for each accident year that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated
ultimate claims cost for each accident year.

Chain-ladder techniques are most appropriate for those accident years and classes of business
that have reached a relatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques are less
suitable in cases in which the insurer does not have a developed claims history for a particular
class of business.

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark or market- based
estimate and an estimate based on claims experience. The former is based on a measure of
exposure such as premiums; the latter is based on the paid or incurred claims to date. The two
estimates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to the experience-based
estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims
experience was not available for the projection (recent accident years or new classes of
business).
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30 Imsurance risk (continued)
30.3 Process used to decide on assumptions (continued)

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an
assessment of the technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical
developments. In certain instances, this has meant that a weighted average of different
techniques have been selected for individual accident years or groups of accident years within
the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary and independent external
actuaries are also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company and has used
historical data for the past 9 vears.

The Company did not change its assumptions for the valuation of the insurance contract
liabilities during the year.

30.4 Concentration of insurance risk

Substantially all of the Company’s underwriting activities are carried out in the United Arab
Emirates. In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure
arising from large insurance claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into
arrangement with other parties for reinsurance purposes.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company
evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk
arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.
Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.
The Company remains liable to its policyhelders for the portion reinsured to the extent that any
reinsurer does not meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements,

31 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital, which the Company considers to be the
equity as shown in the statement of financial position, are:

. to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by U.A E. Federal Law No.
6 of 2007, on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations,
as amended;

. to protect its policyholders’ interests;

) to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

. to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts

commensurately with the level of risk.
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31  Capital risk management (continued)
In the U.A.E., the CBUAE (formerly, the IA) specifies the minimum amount and type of capital
that must be held by the Company in addition to its insurance liabilities. The minimum required

capital (presented in the table below) must be maintained at all times throughout the year.

The table below summarises the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital
held.

2021 2020
AED AED
Total capital held 121,275,000 121,275,000

100,000,000 100,000,000

Minimum regulatory capital

The U.A.E. Insurance Authority has issued resolution no. 42 for 2009 setting the minimum
subscribed or paid up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance companies and
AED 250 million for reinsurance companies. The resolution also stipulates that at least 75
percent of the capital of the insurance companies established in the U.A.E. should be owned
by U.A.E. or G.C.C. national individuals or corporate bodies. The Company is in compliance
with these rules.

As per Article (8) of Section (2) of the Financial Regulations issued for insurance companies
in the UAE, the Company shall at all times throughout the year comply with the requirement
of solvency margins. The solvency regulations identify the required solvency margin to be held
in addition to insurance [iabilities. The Company has incorporated in its policies and procedures
the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with these regulations. The table
below summarizes the Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guaraniee Fund and
Solvency Capital Requirement of the Company and the total capital held to meet these required
Solvency Margins.

2021 2020
AED AED
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 76,716,761 60,520,219
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 64,592,340 85,507,137
Basic Own Funds 152,963,193 146,601,735
Ancillary Own Funds
52,963,193 46,601,735
MCR Solvency Margin - Minimum Capital Requirement
(Surplus/Deficit) 76,246,433 86,081,516
MCR Solvency Margin Solvency Capital Requirement
(Surplus/Deficit) 88,370,853 61,094,598
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32  Financial instruments

32.1 Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument

are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

32.2 Categories of financial instruments

2021 2020
AED AED
Financial assets
Statutory deposit — at amortised cost 10,000,000 10,000,000
FVTOCI investments — debt 111,801,771 57,499,288
FVTOCI investments — equity 733,705 15,407,141
Bank balances and fixed deposits — at amortised cost 192,385,619 181,133,154
Insurance and other receivables excluding advances and
prepayments - at amortised cost 168,287,958 157,311,119
Cash and cash equivalents -~ at amortised cost 57,392,932 29,682,191
540,601,985 451,032,893
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowing — at amortised cost 33,656,997 -
Insurance and other payables excluding accrued
expenses — at amortised cost 117,006,204 85,297.216
150,063,201 85,297,216

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values due to
their short-term nature for the current financial assets and liabilities, and for the financial assets
and liabilities that are of mixed nature the impact of discounting is immaterial.

32.3 Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.
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32  Financial instruments (continued)
32.3 Fair value measurements {continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or lHability.

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined using same valuation
techniques and assumptions as used for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Fair value of the Company 's financial assets that are measured at fair value on recurring basis
Some of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting

period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined:

Relationship
VYalnation of
technigques Sigmificant unobservable
Fair value and key unobservable inputs to fair
Fair value as at hicrarchy inputs input value
Financial assets 2021 2020
AED AED
EVTOCI
investments
Quoted bid
prices in an Not
Debt securities 104,491,681 50,209.906  Level 1 active market. None applicable
Quoted bid
prices from Not
Debt securities 7,310,090 7,289.382 Level2 third parties. None applicable
Quoted bid
prices inan Not
Quoted equify 733,705 15.407.141 Level 1  active market. None Applicable

There were no transfers between any of the levels during the year. There are no financial liabilities
which should be measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table.
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33  Financial risk

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial
liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that
in the long-term its investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from
its insurance contracts. The most important components of this financial risk are market risk
(which includes: foreign currency risk, equity and debt price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

33.1 Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The Company’s market risks may arise from open
positions in (a) foreign currencies and (b) interest bearing assets and liabilities, to the extent
they are exposed to general and specific market movements. Management sets limits on the
exposure to currency and interest rate risk that may be acceptable, which are monitored on a
regular basis.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the
Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

33.1.1 Foreign currency risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as all monetary assets and monetary liabilities are
denominated in Arab Emirates Dirhams, other G.C.C. currencies or US Dollars to which the
Dirham is fixed.

Management believes that there is a minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate
fluctuations and consequently the Company has not hedged its foreign currency exposure.

33.1.2 Equity and debt price risk

Equity and debt price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The
Company is exposed to equity and debt price risk with respect to its quoted equity and debt
investments. The Company limits equity and debt price risk by maintaining a diversified
portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in the market. In addition, the
Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock and market movements, including
analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

At the end of the reporting period, if the equity and debt prices are 10% higher/lower as per the
assumptions mentioned below and all the other variables were held constant, the Company’s
other comprehensive income and equity would have increased/(decreased) by AED 11,253,548
(2020: AED 7,290,643).
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33  Financial risk (continued)
33.1 Market risk (continued)
33.1.2 Equity and debt price risk (continued)

Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis:

. The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity and debt price
risk as at the end of the reporting period.
) As at the end of the reporting period if equity and debt prices are 10% higher/lower on

the market value uniformly for all equity and debt while all other variables are held
constant, the impact on profit and other comprehensive income for the year has been
shown above.

. A 10% change in equity and debt prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as
a plausible event.

33.1.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the finance
income or finance cost of the Company. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest
rate risk on its financial investments in debt instruments and term deposits since they carry
fixed interest rates. As such, the Company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Company generally manages to minimise the interest rate risk by closely monitoring the
market interest rates and investing in those financial assets in which such risk is expected to be
minimal,

If the interest rates on the bank borrowing had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
would increase or decrease by AED 22,956.

33.2 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations
resuiting in financial loss to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

. reinsurance contract assets;

amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
amounts due from insurance contract holders;

amounts due from insurance intermediaries;

amounts due from other insurance companies;

investments in debt instruments;

cash and cash equivalents excluding cash in hand; and

fixed deposits

*» & 9 & » =
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33  Financial risk (continued)
33.2 Credit risk (continued)

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit
ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by
counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by Management annually. A default ona
financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of
when they fall due,

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the
Company’s liability as primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the
Company remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers
is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation of
any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with
whom it conducts regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed
by other mechanisms, such as the right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and
creditors of the Company. Management information reported to the Company includes details
of provisions for impairment on insurance and other receivables and subsequent write-offs.
Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are mitigated by ongoing
credit evaluation of their financial condition. Where there exists significant exposure to
individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of policyholders, a financial analysis
equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company.

For insurance and other receivables, the Company applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected impairment provision for
insurance and other receivables. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these
items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based
on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions.
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33  Financial risk (continued)

33.2 Credit risk (continued)

On that basis, the impairment provision as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 was
determined as follows for insurance and other receivables based on the expected loss rates

disclosed in Note 11:

Not Yet <90 91-180 181-270 271 -365 > 365
Dae days days days days days Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
2021
Gross carrying
amount - insurance
and other receivahles 76,678,261 47,841,493 19,535,766 7,906,262 6,437,286 31,606,557 190,005,625
Impairment provision __(575,550)  (2.040.952) (2.087.978) (1,799,150) (2,392,861) (23.678,718) (32.375.207)
76,102,711 45,800,541 17,447,788 6,107,112 4,044,425 7927839 157,430,416
2020
Gross carrying
amount - insurance
and other receivables 108,510,776 18,916,901 12,209,879 5,807,668 5,339,102 45344984 196,129,310
Impainment provision _(1,082.210) (2,541,226} (1459436) {(1.872.831) (2.679444) (45.072.935) (54.708.082)
107.428.566  16,375.675 10,750,443 3.934.837 2,659,658 272046 141,421,228

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Company defines counterparties as
having similar characteristics if they are related entities. Insurance and other receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance and other

receivables.

At the end of the reporting period, all premium receivables are situated within the U.A.E. The
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, from reinsurance companies’ receivables
situated outside the U.A.E. were as follows:

Europe

Asia

Other MENA countries
Africa

2021 2020

AED AED
31,310,667 14,445,854
5,275,076 175,348
220,181 8,994,335
52,727 27,512
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33  Financial risk (continued)
33.2 Credit risk (continued)

The table below presents an analysis of reinsurance receivable balances at the end of the reporting
period based on Moody’s rating or its equivalent:

2021 2020

AED AED

Al 14,481,792 594,830
A2 176,041 13,845,968
A3 21,880,495 4,354
Baal 3,536,106 -
Baa? - 11,432,142
40,074,434 25,877,294

The majority of the company's premium receivables are unrated except balances with the Parent
company amounting to AED 9 million {(2020: AED 15 million) (Note 26) which has rating of
Baa. However, the Company in the ordinary course of business deals with reputable local
companies and has the ability to net receivables with claims payable and cancel policies if there
are no payments.

A 10% increase/(decrease) in historical loss experience based on which the credit loss
allowances for insurance and other receivables were estimated at 31 December 2021 would
result in an increase/(decrease) in credit loss allowances of AED 1,674,401 (2020: AED
1,884,130).

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to cash and bank balances, as the
Company holds cash accounts in a large number of financial institutions. Of the bank balances and
fixed deposits balance at the end of year, AED 110 million (2020: AED 98 million) is placed with
one bank. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the single largest counterparty is a UAE
sovereign bank. The table below presents an analysis of bank balances and cash and fixed deposits
by rating agency designation at the end of the reporting period based on Moody’s rating or its
equivalent for the main banking relationships:

2021 2020

AED AED

Aa3 3,671,685 582,254
Al 94,673 112,789
A2 2,081,588 432,100
A3 - 36,493,548
Baal 251,313,733 182,894,272
Not rated 2,592,305 271,842
255,753,984 220,786,805
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33  Financial risk (continued)
33.2  Credit risk (continued)

The Company’s financial assets at FVTOCT are held across various countries.

2021 2020

AED AED

Aa2 10,024,453 -
Aa3 - 7,989,120
Al 9,983,624 -
A2 20,758,355 13,539,132
A3 10,051,289 3,493,160
Baal - 3,975,540
Baa2 582,330 4,492,062
Baa3 9,782,540 7,710,161
Bal 6,955,405 8,925:187
Ba2 7,268,939 11,269,515
Ba3 16,919,855 -
Bl 7,829,372 11,467,707
Not rated ) 12,379,314 44,845
112,535,476 72,906,429

All the Company’s debt investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
are considered to have low credit risk, and the impainment charge recognised during the year was
therefore limited to 12 months® expected losses.

A 10% increase/(decrease) in the probability of default and loss given default estimates as at
31 December 2021 would result in an increase/(decrease) of AED 210,591 (2020:
increase/{decrease) AED 64,969} in total expected credit loss allowances on FVTQCI
investments, bank balances and fixed deposits.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
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33  Financial risk (continued)
33.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with its financial liabilities at maturity date. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the management, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities to ensure that funds are
available to meet its commitments for liabilities as they fall due.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets, financial
liabilities, insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contracts assets held. The maturity
analysis has been presented on a contractual undiscounted cash flow basis except for insurance
contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets held which have been presented on their
expected cash flows. The contractual maturities of the financial instruments have been
determined on the basis of the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date. The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity is
maintained.

79



08

T02°€90°0ST - - - 10Z°€90°0ST
F0T'900° LT - - - YOT'900°LTT
L66°9S0°EE - - - L66°9S0°EE
$86°109°0bS cOLeeL 0 £9.°850°18 S06°LTS'8T T19°I8T0Th
TE6°T6E'LS - - - E6°T6E LS
619°S8€°T61 - - 6S6°0L0°01 099°P1E°T8I
856°L8T'891 - - - 8S6°L8T 891
000°000°0T 000°000°01 - - -
COL'CEL COL'EEL - - -
TLLTOSTIT - €9.°8S0°T8 96°9SH 81 790°98Z°C1
aav aav axv aav azv
€10, Aumjenn SILIA saeak Ieak

ON +S S-1 I uey sso|

sajqeAed 10U10 puR 2dUBINSU]
duimorroq yuegy
sapliqer} [elouvuly

[Sed pue sasue[eq yueqg
sysodop poxT1,]

S3|(EAI2331 12Y10 PUB DOUBINSU]
usodap A1omje1g

Ambo - sususaAul [DOLAL
199p — SIULULSaAUT THOLAL
$)ISSE [RIoUBUL]

[207 Pquada(q ¢

(penunuoo) ysu Appmmbr|  ¢'¢¢

(ponunuod) YSuI [BDUBMLY €€

(panunuoo) YZOT 19qUEIdA(] € PIPUI 18IA [} 0] SIUIWIIIL)S [CIIURULY I} O} SAJON

*'S"d Aueduio)) soueansuy jeucneN yeueyy [v sey



8

(Z06°16T°L17) (9L¥*8€) (10¥ 1££'%¢) (ST0°TT6'T8T)
(SoS‘T1LT) - (sos‘11LT) -
(TPLLLISY) - (zL1'8b1) (0L5°620°S9)
(LIL'6LYET) - (660°1E) (819°8v9°c1)
(L0L‘8TS 0E) (z61‘6) (T6L'6E¥°L) (FTL690°C7)
(YETr0T901) (8760 (reg8‘000°s?) (ETITPLITS)
CLPTIS STV 166°Ch LOTLIS'LS SLT'TSYLSE
780°196°F1 - 80°196°F T -

658 LPS 681 - 606°0¢r 0S6°9TT 68T
0LLOEL L - 9Z0°I€ $89°669°LT
LLO'9SE 9P SSS0T COTPSI‘OX 6IF 16T 9€
768°109°F LYOL 6YE0T0T 96+ 06S°€
€S8 PEC TP 68€°TE 8EL'6YTIE 9TLTSO YT
aav axv aiav aav

—ﬁuorﬁ sIvaA +m SIBIA c-1

ABIA | UBY) SSI]

OAISSAI [BOTIRWAIRIN

swnrwaxd pawesun)

9AI2831 Js1I paxidxaupn)

pantodar jou 1nq pasmour SWIe[)
suiepd gurpur)sing

§]9SSE JIBIIUOI IIULINSUWIY

QATDSAI [RIIIRWAIBIA]

summuaid pawrgaur)

QAIaS2I Ys11 paxdxaupn)

patroday jou Jnq paLmoul W)

9AI3521 asuadxa justsnipe sso] payedo]eu
swie[o Surpueising

SANI[I( BI] JOBIIUOD IDUBINSUJ

1207 QU3 1€

(penunuoo) ysti Ayrpinbry  ¢¢g

(penunuod) YSII [BRuUBUL €€

{(ponunuod) JZOT QU [ PIPUR 1L IY) J0J SIUIWI)IE)S [BIIURULJ ) 0] SI)ON]

'S d Aueduio)) dduransuy [eUon BN Yeweydy [V sey



[}

91T°L6T'GY - - N 91T°L6T'S8
91T L6TSY - - - 91216768
£68°TL0ISY 171°L0¥'ST 699 Ty T LLO'TPLTS 900 Thy 87 E
161°789°6C - - - 161°789°67
PCIECI 18] - SE€9°TSY 605°9TS°9¢ 010%S6°Ch1
61T ITELST - - - 6IT°TIELST
000°000°01 000°000°01 - - -
IvI°LOV S I71°L0VC1 - - -
88T°66¥°LS - #€0°06L°ET 89S VIT91 989 y61°L1
aav aiayv aav aav aav
¥, Armjew saeak SIBIA Jeak

ON +S o | [ uey) sso

sojqeAed 19)0 pue IoUBINSU]
sapiIqel] [eueuLy

(sed pue saduefeq yueg
spsodap paxig

S9[QBAISIAI I3]0 PUB 20UBINSUJ
nsodap A103nesg

Ambs - syuammsaaul I1DO LA
1Gep - suaulisaall [HOLAL
§)9$SE [BIOURUL]

070T PqUuRdA( 1¢

(ponunuoo) yswx Appinbry  ¢¢g¢

(ponunuod) YSH [ROUBUL] €€

(penunuod) [ZOT 49qUII(] [ PIPUD 1edL 3]} 10§ SJUIWIIIL]S [BIIUBUL] 3} 0} $I)ON

"D'S"d Auedwo)) souransuj jeuone)N qeuwneyyy [V sty



€8

(£9€°911°991) (£6S°TL0°T) (0L5°00T°8¢) (00Z°€H89Z1)
(1L6°7€¥°1) - (1L6°2r° 1) -
(086°0T°LS) - (osz'ezn) (0£L°L8T°LS)
(FSTS60°127) - (L8T'sH) (L96°670°12)
(8¥1°99,L°L7) (161°02F) (F18°866°11) (EP1°LPE°ST)
(010°11#°8S) (T0¥°T$9) (8¥T°009°t7) (09£°85T1°¢E)
€L0°€69°8F€ P61°0LY T 81T°T61°691 199°0€0° 181
6LY 9T 1 - 6LYFIT VI -
T81°C6EELT T06°T6E°T 999°616 1L F19°08%°001
CIF°680°tC - €1¥°680°4T -

090°019°CS CToTTh LZI°00L 1T S0€°L8+°0€
876°0¥8°C - 0Ty . 97L°9€8°T
[10°S6¥°18 L9999 [€€719°€E €10°9TT LY
aav agav aav aav

[®10], saeak 4+¢ sa1ead G- Jeaf 1 ueyy ss9y

JAIISIT [ROTIBUWISTR]A]
swnruaid patresuny

dAISa1 YsU pandxaufy

pariodai 10U NG PAENIUT STHED)
SR SUIPUBISING

S)ISSE 1OEIJUO0D IDULINSUIIY

JAIISAI [RONEWIAYIRIA

swniwaid pawreaun)

JAI9S21 NSH pandxaun

pantodal 10U Inq paunour SWIe[)

2AIsaI asuadxa yuaunsnipe ssof pajesojeun
suiepo Juipueising

SINI[IqeI] JOBIIUOI IdUvINSU]

00T PquA( I¢

(ponunuoo) ysur Hripmbry  ¢'¢¢

(ponunuod) YSII [RIdURUI €€

(ponunuoo) 177 I19qUIdI(] [ PIPUI ABIA Y} J0] SYUIUII)E)S [RIDUBULJ Oy} 03 SIJON

S°d %:&QEOU ISJUEBINSU]Y [euonneN yewley |v Sey



Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
{(continued)

33  Financial risk (continued)

33.4 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failures, human error, fraud or external
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risk can cause damage to reputation, have
legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to
eliminate all operational risks, but through a control framework and by monitoring and
responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include
effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation, and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes.

34  Segment information

The Company is organised into two segments: Life and Medical as one segment and Motor and
General as the other segment.

These segments are the basis on which the Company reports its primary segment information
to the Chief Executive Officer. Gross written premiums represent the total income arising from
insurance contracts. The Company does not conduct any business outside U.A E. There are no
transactions between the business segments.

The following is an analysis of the Company’s statement of profit or loss classified by major

segments:

2021
Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
AED AED AED
Gross written premiums 329,012,009 140,136,318 469,148,327
Net insurance premium revenue earned 221,308,471 53,878,125 275,186,596
Net claims settled (139,608,042) (20,933,002) {160,541,044)
Net change in outstanding claims,
unallocated loss adjustment expenses,
mathematical reserves and claims incurred
but not reported (“IBNR”) provisions (1,966,660) (4,282,452) (6,249,112)
Net claims incurred (141,574,702) (25,215,454) (166,790,156)
Commission earned 5,230,670 13,129,932 18,360,602
Commissions paid (59,583,242) {16,753,303) (76,336,545)
Net commission incurred (54,352,572) (3,623,371) (57,975,943)
Gross underwriting income 25,381,197 25,039,300 50,420,497
General and administrative expenses (30,381,892) (24,896,072) (55,277,964)
Allowance for impairment (1,108,063) {464,854) (1,572,917)
Net underwriting loss (6,108,758) (321,626) (6,430,384)
Income from investments 6,216,150 9,123,182 15,339,332
Other income 1,536,293 26,614 1,562,907
Profit for the year 1,643,685 8,828,170 10,471,855
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

34  Segment information (continued)

Gross written premiums
Net insurance premium revenue earned

Net claims settled

Net change in outstanding claims, unallocated
loss adjustment expenses and claims incurred
but not reported (“IBNR™)} provisions

Net claims incurred

Commission earned

Commissions paid

Net commission incurred

Gross underwriting income
General and administrative expenses
Allowance for impairment

Net underwriting (loss) / profit

Income from investments
Other income / (expenses)
(Loss) / profit for the year

2020

Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
AED AED AED
351,167,133 140,636,082 491,803,215
302,917,760 58,087,128 361,004,888
(223,492.303) (20,195,450) (243,687,753)
15,574,677 (3.109.441) 12,465,236
(207,917,626) (23.304,8%1) (231,222,517)
5,502,201 15,301,993 20,804,194
(64,428,876) (17,358,851) (81,787,727)
(58,926,675) {2,056,858) {(60,983,533)
36,073,459 32,725,379 68,798,838
(30,112,898) (21,959,557) (52,072,455
(10,897,709 (5,284,056) (16,181,765
(4,937,148) 5,481,766 544,618
3,068,100 8,487,395 11,555,495
(1,339,266) 2,714,614 1,375,348
{3,208,314) 16,683,775 13,475,461

The following is an analysis of the Company’s assets, liabilities and equity classified by

segment:

Total assets
Total equity
Total liabilities

Total assets
Total equity
Total liabilities

2021

Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
AED AED AED
327,039,005 469,765,049 796,804,054
3,509,575 199,153,151 202,662,726
323,529,430 270,611,898 594,141,328

2020

Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
AED AED AED
288,564,858 388,339,037 676,903,895
2,855,823 200,220,195 203,076,018
285,709,035 188,118,842 473,827,877

85



Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

35 Dividend and directors’ remuneration

At the Annual General Meeting held on 14 April 2021, the shareholders approved a dividend
distribution of 8 fils per share resulting in a total dividend payable of AED 9,702,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and Board of Directors’ remuneration of AED 1,347,546. The
Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of AED 8 fils per share amounting to AED
9,702,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021. Further, the Board of Directors propose Board
of Directors remuneration of AED 0.81 million for 2021 (AED 1.35 million for 2020). The
proposed dividends and Board of Directors remuneration above are subject to the approval of
the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The proposed dividends have not been
included as a liability in the financial statements.

36 Covid-19 and the current economic situation

The spread of coronavirus (COVID-19) since early 2020 has resulted in macro-economic
uncertainty across all sectors of the economy due to the price and demand for oil, reduced economic
activity, disruption to global supply chains and the potential postponement of large scale events.
Despite the lockdowns being lifted and activities resuming to the “new normal” in the United Arab
Emirates during the second half of 2020, the full impact of COVID-19 on the economy cannot be
reliably measured. Consistent with the market sentiment, management expects that the uncertain
future macro-economic environment could impact the earnings, cash flows and financial condition
of the Company as well as those of our counter parties. The Company is monitoring these metrics
on a regular basis and will respond to any threats identified.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had 95 (2020:1,005) reported medical
claims and 117 (2020: 31) reported credit life claims in relation to COVID-19. The net exposure
during the year ended 31 December 2021 of the medical and credit life COVID-19 claims
amounted to AED 1,209,452 (2020: AED 6.93 million) and AED 1,116,271 (2020: AED 56,930)
respectively. As at the date of the statement of financial position, the Company has one business
interruption claim, which is immaterial to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021. The Company is closely monitoring its loss experience and adjusting the technical reserves
where appropriate.

Management has increased its focus on managing its cash flows and collections on outstanding
receivables. This is reflected in the improved ageing of receivables as at 31 December 2021 as
compared to 31 December 2020. The Company is continuing with its business continuity and
remote working plans and continues to provide services to its customers within the agreed service
level agreements. Further, the Company continues to monitor its liquidity position on a regular
basis. This liquidity position along with other parameters are shared with the regulators on a regular
basis as part of the Company’s reporting obligations.
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Ras Al Khaimah National Insurance Company P.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

37  Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would
significantly affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.

38  Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 10

February 2022. The Board of Directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial
statements.
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